Robin E. Pinelle, Circuit Clerk

NH Circuit Court

10t Circuit — District Division — Derry
10 Courthouse l.ane

Derry, NH 03038

July 5™ 2018

Paul Maravelias
34 Mockingbird Hill Rd
Windham, NH 03087

RE: Christina DePampbhilis vs. Paul Maravelias

Docket No. 473-2016-CV-00124

Dear Clerk Pinelle,

Enclosed please find Respondent’s Objection to Petitioner’s Motion for Modification of
Stalking Final Order of Protection to Include Further Conditions 10 be filed in the above-

referenced case.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

CC: Simon R. Brown, Esq.

Sincerely,

Paul J. Maravelias

I, Paul Maravelias, certify that a copy of the present Objection to Petitioner’s Motion for Modification of
Stalking Final Order of Protection to Include Further Conditions was forwarded on this day through USPS
Certified Mail to Simon R. Brown, Esq., counsel for the Petitioner, P.O. Box 1318, Concord, NH, 03302-1318.




THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

ROCKINGHAM, SS 10™ CIRCUIT — DISTRICT DIVISION - DERRY

Docket No. 473-2016-CV-00124

Christina DePamphilis

V.

Paul Maravelias

RESPONDENT’S OBJECTION TO PETITIONER’S MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF
STALKING FINAL ORDER OF PROTECTION TO INCLUDE FURTHER CONDITIONS

NOW COMES the Respondent, Paul Maravelias, and moves this Court to deny Petitioner’s
baseless Motion for Modification of Stalking Final Order of Protection to Include Further

Conditions dated 7/2/18. In support thereof, he represents as follows:

1. On 7/2/18, David DePamphilis’s daughter, the Petitioner, filed the aforementioned
Motion to impose even more severe court-ordered restrictions on Maravelias’s public free-
speech rights, even after her outright lies, inconsistent statements, and vulgar acts of harassment
against Maravelias were undeniably exposed in numerous ways during hearings before this Court
on 5/3, 5/4, and 6/8 of this year.

A. PETITIONER CHRISTINA DEPAMPHILIS’S MOTION AIMS TO EXCUSE HER
DOCUMENTED ILLEGAL BEHAVIORS AND EMPOWER HER TO CONTINUE VIOLATING
THE LAW, AND IS BUT ANOTHER PREDICTABLE ACT IN HER CONTINUED CAMPAIGN
OF LEGAL HARASSMENT AGAINST MARAVELIAS

1

PAUL MARAVELIAS — 34 MOCKINGBIRD HILL RD, WINDHAM, NH 03087



2. As this Court will remember, Christina DePamphilis has cruelly bullied the victim, Mr.
Maravelias, with incitative, vulgar, and insulting posts on her public social media profile(s)
during the pendency of her criminally falsified “stalking” order against the victim/Respondent.

3. She now seeks to have this Court outlaw Maravelias’s mere possessing a record of her
behavior.

4. Inparticular, in June 2017, Petitioner posted an inflammatory picture of her boyfriend
directly addressing the victim and making incitative comments against him (6/19/18).

5.  After failing to elicit any response from Maravelias that would violate her bad-faith
“stalking” order against him, she then posted a rehearsed image of herself, her father David
DePamphilis, and her 21-year-old boyfriend Matthew LaL.iberte, all middle-fingering the victim,
and also making an incitative comment against the victim which identified him.

6. Viewed in the light of her acts of criminal harassment (RSA 644:4) against Mr.
Maravelias, the Petitioner’s present motion to prohibit Maravelias from “gaining access” to or
even “possessing” these public posts, even from “third parties”, is a risible perversion of
propriety.

7.  Essentially, Christina DePamphilis wishes to be legitimated by this Court to continue

her vulgar harassment of Mr. Maravelias while injunctively restraining him from even using her

outrageous public social media exhibits for legal purposes to defend himself. This Court should

feel insulted by such a disrespectful and inappropriate attempt to abuse its power.
8.  The Petitioner’s continued conduct of filing baseless motions against the victim is for
no valid purpose beyond solely to harass him; this Court should impose sanctions against her

accordingly for such repeated and patently unreasonable motions against Mr. Maravelias.
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9.  Furthermore, the Petitioner’s motion attempts to excuse her generic illegal behaviors,
past and future, demonstrated on her social media, in which Mr. Maravelias is not the victim.

10. Inthe Motion to Extend Hearing, this Court accepted inter alia a relevant evidentiary
exhibit of the “minor” Petitioner — a picture from her social media. In this post, she had pictured
herself, at age 16, holding a purse in her right hand and an open bottle of vodka in her left while
leaving a party at “4:43am”, with her parked, about-to-be-driven car in the background.

11. Christina DePamphilis also documented her psychoactive substance abuse, her private
sexual behaviors?, and her further underage alcoholic consumption in other social media
postings.

12. Thus, the Petitioner’s current desire to handcuff Maravelias in his public free speech

rights to third-parties is but a panicked “futile attempt” to avoid responsibility for her pictured

acts of law-breaking and perjury?, should Maravelias discontinue his magnanimous decline so-

far to lawfully document said public postings on the web, as he lawfully threatened to do in a

November 2017 response to Attorney Brown’s out-of-the-blue threatening letter®.

LIf this Court were to grant Petitioner’s Motion and thereby enter the enterprise of unlawfully policing private
conducts of speech, it would at least be equitable for the Court to order Christina DePampbhilis to cease and desist
making improper posts revealing her private sexual behaviors before peers. Upon information and belief, this
behavior is socially unacceptable, and is considered disturbing by her peers. It is not practiced by other youth, even
by ones who picture themselves violating state laws on alcohol/marijuana consumption. While the latter is at least
somewhat socially acceptable, the Petitioner has caused discomfort to her peers with her unwanted social media
indications of her private sex life. These should never be publicly posted on social media, especially given her age.

2 Christina DePamphilis maintained her false claim under oath on 5/3/18 that she has “fear for her physical safety”
of Mr. Maravelias, despite her abusive, harassing, and unlawful conduct victimizing Mr. Maravelias. Indeed, this
Court has validated Christina DePamphilis’s hurtful law-breaking, in wrongfully granting an extension on her
Stalking Order. That matter is pending this Court’s review in a reconsideration pleading filed by Respondent.

3 Maravelias has every right to publicly republish her legally-public postings, as acknowledged by the mere
existence of the instant motion by Petitioner, the daughter of David DePamphilis, to injunct against said right.
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13. The Petitioner requests that it be unlawful for Maravelias to even “possess” her social
media postings. This is so absurd that it would criminalize Mr. Maravelias for merely owning his
copy of this Court’s own public evidence exhibits from this case which he used at Hearing.

14. Thus, it would also violate the “Right to Know” law (91-A), guaranteeing access to
public court records, e.g. Christina DePamphilis’s posting of herself middle-fingering her victim.

15. While it is strongly speculated that there are many photographs in existence of the 17-
year-old female Petitioner which are already quite unlawful for anyone to even possess?, these
are most certainly not the public social media postings in question, which are fully lawful for
legal use.

B. PETITIONER’S MOTION DISHONESTLY OMITS PARTS OF MARAVELIAS’S ALLEGED
“THREATNING QUOTE” TO OBFUSCATE THE FACT THAT HE WAS MERELY COUNTER-
THREATENING LAWFUL DETERRENT RETALIATION IF LEGALLY ATTACKED

16. The Petitioner seems quite fixated on the fact that Maravelias merely responded to
Attorney Brown’s provocative, threatening letter to him. Maravelias made a comment along the
lines that he would “go nuclear and utterly destroy [Christina’s] academic and professional future”.

17. Conveniently, Petitioner omits the second part of Maravelias’s actual sentence: “[share her

own public social media artifacts], should David dare challenge [Maravelias] legally”.

18. Thus, Petitioner’s counsel first provoked Maravelias with an absurd, causeless threat of

lawsuit, and Maravelias then lawfully counter-threatened to share Petitioner’s already-public social

media posts, which might have a negative effect on her future due to her own outrageous behaviors.

418 U.S.C. § 2251, RSA 649-A:3
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C. PETITIONER’S MOTION HAS NO BASIS IN THE LAW WHATSOEVER, AS THE REQUESTED
RELIEF FAR EXCEEDS THE POWERS GRANTED TO THIS COURT BY THE LAW AND
WOULD FURTHER BLATANTLY ABUSE MARAVELIAS’S BASIC CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS
TO FREE SPEECH, PRESS, AND PETITION, AMONG OTHERS

“Free speech and Liberty of the press are essential to the security of Freedom in a State: They ought,
therefore, to be inviolably preserved.” — N.H. Const., Part I, Article 22

19. A Stalking Order — whether lawfully issued or not — does not grant a trial court unspecified
powers to enjoin broad prophylactic injunctions on First Amendment-protected speech against
Respondent. Petitioner’s Motion seeks no relief whatsoever regarding Maravelias’s conduct with
her, but rather his speech to third-party actors. This is shameful and cowardly.

20. “Only narrow categories of speech, such as defamation, incitement and pornography
produced with real children, fall outside the ambit of the right to free speech.” State v. Zidel, 156
N.H. 684, 686, 940 A.2d 255 (2008). As Petitioner’s requested terms seek to injunct against
Maravelias’s free speech rights in none of the aforecited unprotected categories®, but rather would
proscribe any and all communications with large classes of third party individuals, her motion must
be unquestionably denied.

21. If this Court were to abuse its power by granting such latitudinous injunctions against Mr.
Maravelias’s public speech to parties other than Petitioner, it would incur liability in federal — let
alone state-level — lawsuits for damages on the grounds of willful, reckless First Amendment
transgression. Since this Court is well-aware of the facts and circumstances of this case and has

demonstrated a repeated pattern of inexcusable conduct evincing a clear bias against Respondent, it

5 Insofar as the Petitioner falsely claims Maravelias’s 12/10/17 email regarding her conduct was “libelous”, the
proper remedy for defamation is recovery of damages through civil equity litigation — not a personal-safety-
exclusive Stalking Order. Mr. Maravelias is the victim, not the author, of libelous/slanderous expression.
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would be liable for Section 42 U.S.C. § 1983 federal damages in violating Respondent’s
constitutional rights while acting under color of state law.

22. That such violations be knowing or willful is not a prerequisite element for § 1983 action.

23. While the Court has authority to issue specific orders of protection as enumerated on the
standard form for Stalking Orders requested by Petitioner prior to and not after any hearing, the
Court may do so only “as is necessary to bring about a cessation of stalking”. See RSA 633:3-a, Ill-
a. Furthermore, 633:3-a, Il. narrows the legal definition “stalking” such that it “shall not include
constitutionally protected activity, nor shall it include conduct that was necessary to accomplish a
legitimate purpose independent of making contact with the targeted person”.

24. Therefore, the requested modifications to the Stalking Order are absolutely illegal. They
overwhelmingly exceed the Court’s statutory authority to prohibit solely acts of further “stalking”,
of which constitutionally protected speech (e.g., to own/use public social media postings or
communicate with public employees independent of contacting Petitioner) is not.

25. Furthermore, if the Court nonetheless asserted an undefined power to grant these expanded
injunctions against Respondent, it would violate plainly established protections on constitutional,
legitimate speech to third-parties who are not plaintiffs in any civil protective order. Such a court
order would be contemptuous of Part I, Article 22 of the State Constitution and the First and
Fourteenth Amendments of the Federal Constitution, inter alia.

26. The relief sought in Petitioner’s motion is unconstitutional for being impossibly vague and
woefully overbroad. “Courts are suspicious of broad prophylactic rules in the area of free
expression, and therefore precision of regulation must be the touchstone in an area so closely

touching our most precious freedoms”. Montenegro v. New Hampshire Div. of Motor Vehicles, 166

N.H. 215, 220 (2014). The sought expanded terms of protection fail to sustain any “precision of
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regulation” standard, as they are impermissibly overbroad and confusingly vague. A statute is

(113

considered unconstitutionally “‘overbroad’ in violation of the First Amendment if in its reach it

prohibits constitutionally protected conduct.” Grayned v. City of Rockford, 408 U.S. 104, 114

(1972).
27. The second and third sought orders of protection forbid that the Respondent should contact

29 ¢¢

Petitioner’s “present or future” “academic providers” or “employers”. In imposing such groundless
authoritarian sanctions against Maravelias, the Court would expect him to conjure a supernatural
ability to presciently discern through a crystal ball who might be her “future employer(s)” or who

might be her future/current “academic provider(s)”, a term which is in itself impossibly vague.

28. Clearly, these measures are wickedly crafted to outlaw any and all acts of constitutionally

protected, self-defensive speech Maravelias may take on the web or elsewhere to defend his own

wrongfully discredited name, traduced in envy by the Petitioner-attention-seeker, as any public act

of speech whatsoever could be visible to an “employer” or “academic provider”.

29. “The overbreadth doctrine prohibits the Government from banning unprotected speech if a

substantial amount of protected speech is prohibited or chilled in the process.” Ashcroft v. Free

Speech Coal., 535 U.S. 234, 237 (2002). Even if the requested additional injunctions did function to
prevent further acts of “stalking”, they are still egregiously overbroad and therefore unactionable
manifestations of the statute, due to the copious protected speech that would be simultaneously

criminalized. See Doyle v. Comm’r, N.H. Dep’t. of Resources & Economic Dev., 163 N.H. 215,

221 (2012), which holds laws facially overbroad under Part I, Article 22 of the State Constitution
where “a substantial number of its applications are unconstitutional, judged in relation to the [law’s]

plainly legitimate sweep”. Id.
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30. This Court must observe the brutally evident reality that Christina DePamphilis finds
herself in a guilt-ridden panic-mode state, now that her outrageous acts of protective order
falsification have been documented by Maravelias at the Hearing, that the wrong order was actually
extended against him (perpetuating the injustice), and that he still has full right to make public
speech acts to document her crimes. This Court issues jail sentences routinely in its official duties:
why then should it protect a nefarious perjurer-criminal from natural consequences as
comparatively tepid as having the objective facts of her own public words further publicized?

D. PETITIONER’S CITATION OF RSA 173-B:5 1S INCOMPLETE, DECEPTIVE, AND INVALID

31. Paragraph 9 of David DePamphilis’s daughter’s Motion attempts to deceive this Court into
believing it has any legal authority whatsoever to grant her request. This is another act of the
Petitioner’s storied obscurantism and willful misrepresentation of facts.

32. RSA 173-B is the domestic violence statute, in which the operative legal term is “abuse”.

33. “Abuse” is defined in 173-B:1, | as certain acts performed exclusively “by a family or
household member or by a current or former sexual or intimate partner” of the victim.

34. Mr. Maravelias has never been a “family or household member” of Petitioner, nor one of
the many men who may honestly claim to have been her “sexual or intimate partner”, thankfully.

35. Thus, 173-B terminology pertaining to “abuse” is thoroughly inapplicable to the instant

case.

36. Although the procedural stipulations of 173-B are applied to Stalking protective orders
under 633:3-a, Il1-a, this does not mean specific language pertaining to physically violent domestic
“abuse” in 173-B may be absorbed into a very different case pertaining to alleged “stalking”.

37. The Petitioner attempts to fool this Court into adopting a strange interpretation of 173-B:5

by obscurantistically omitting the full text of the statute for essential context:
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“I. A finding of abuse shall mean the defendant represents a credible threat to the safety of the
plaintiff. Upon a showing of abuse of the plaintiff by a preponderance of the evidence, the court
shall grant such relief as is necessary to bring about a cessation of abuse.” (Emphasis added)

38. The Petitioner dishonestly cherry-picks the last 8 words of the statute in Paragraph 9 of her
Motion — omitting even the majority of the quoted sentence, let alone the surrounding context — to
advance a preposterous interpretation thereof before this Court.®

39. That is, the Petitioner deceitfully conflates the statute controlling the original issuance of a
domestic violence restraining order with a nonexistent power of this Court to issue further stalking-
related injunctions against Mr. Maravelias without any form of due process inherent to the original
issuance of Stalking order terms of protection, such as a full and fair trial, the notice of criminal
consequences for perjurious accusations in the petition form, and a public notary taking the oath of
the Petitioner certifying the truth of his or her allegations.

40. The dishonesty of Petitioner’s Paragraph 9 conduct is extreme and willful. This Court
should impose sanctions for such blatant attempts to fool it into breaking the law, and the bar
association should be contacted regarding a potential Code of Attorney Conduct violation’.

41. Absolute judicial immunity exists where a judge acts within a “judicial capacity”. Stump v.
Sparkman, 435 U.S. 349 (1978). Since issuing unlawful injunctions against Respondent on the basis
of an inapplicable legal standard for a separate cause of action (as documented above) establishes a

framework in which the Court knows it acts outside of the law, such an act would be in excess of

any legitimate “judicial capacity” and would dissolve the ordinary shield of absolute judicial

immunity from federal Section 1983 and/or other litigation.

6 See the parallel language specific to Stalking orders in 633:3-a, I11-a, which differs from 173-B’s text and again
pertains to the initial process of Stalking Petition filing and subsequent court order post-hearing, not an unfettered
right to grant further unnoticed prayers for relief found nowhere in the Petition nor ever raised at the Hearing.

" See New Hampshire Rules of Professional Conduct Rule 1.1 (b)(1), Rule 4.1, and the 2004 ABA Model Rule
Comment on Rule 4.1
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42. In further support of the Court’s inability to impose unlawful, unconstitutional restrictions
on the public speech of Respondent, see Exhibit A (Respondent’s May 2018 Motion to Dismiss
filed in the baseless criminal case against Respondent for his 12/10/17 National Honor Society
ethics complaint email, which Petitioner references in her Motion).

E. THE LEGAL SCOPE AND LEGISLATIVE HISTORY OF THE STALKING STATUTE CONCERN
PERSONAL SAFETY PROTECTION EXCLUSIVELY — NOT ENFORCING CRIMINAL
SANCTIONS FOR ACTS OF DISAGREEABLE SPEECH OR EVEN DEFAMATORY SPEECH.

43. The expanded terms requested by Christina DePamphilis have absolutely nothing to do

with protecting her physical safety. They are fretful, neurotic exasperations that the Court order

Maravelias 1) not possess public legal exhibits and 2) not make any communications to third-
parties. Even if this were a legitimate “protection” of someone’s “career” or “academics”, the law
affords this Court no ability to enforce random “protection” injunctions at its own despotic, nanny-
state volition, as requested.

44. The Stalking statute permits physical-violence-prevention-related protections exclusively.

F. PETITIONER’S ABUSIVE MOTION FALSELY ACCUSES THE RESPONDENT EXACTLY OF
HER OWN DISTURBING BEHAVIORS

45. When taking breaks from secretly collecting pictures of Maravelias’s private bedroom
without his knowledge and harassing him with vulgar middle-finger posts with her boyfriend, the
Petitioner Christina DePamphilis has been monitoring Maravelias’s online activity and gaining
access to material she is not intended to see. In a recent filing, she revealed that she has likely
hacked into Maravelias’s private business product support forum and accessed Maravelias’s private
postings on an off-topic discussion section therefrom.

46. Given the Petitioner’s disturbing and obsessive behaviors, Maravelias understandably feels
violated, uncomfortable, and utterly creeped-out. But, he dares not file another honest and truthful
Stalking petition — even as a victim of true stalking — since this Court has proven its undeniable
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prejudicial hostility against Maravelias in forcing him to pay an opponent’s attorney’s fees in a
factually corroborated, truthful Petition filed against David DePamphilis.

47. Thus, at the very least, this Court ought not to unlawfully expand the abusive “terms of
protection” in the same extant Stalking Order it knows to be originated in falsification.

48. Furthermore, Respondent Maravelias has been absolutely magnanimous up to this point in
declining to exercise his right to disseminate DePamphilis’s outrageous social media postings. The

Court should perceive Maravelias’s good-character benevolence, and not further abuse his speech

rights through unilateral acts of judicial tyranny.

49. To prove this, Maravelias represents to have been sent the following social media postings

made by Christina DePamphilis, which he has opted never to share heretofore in any context:

a. A post showing Christina conspiring with her brother Nicolas DePamphilis over SMS
about where the two may consume an illegal drug without David DePamphilis
knowing;

b. A video of Christina forcing the slurred exclamation “I’m. So. High!” through an
intoxicated blur while sitting on a toilet at a party;

c. A highly inappropriate, suggestive video of Christina genuflecting on her knees and
sucking a frothy white fluid (hypothesized to be whipped cream) into her mouth which
then appears smeared on her face;

d. Photographs and videos of Christina climbing out of her second-story bedroom
window late at night to escape to a party in secret;

e. A video wherein Christina brags of “passing” a field sobriety test a police officer
administered to her when pulled over returning from said party;

f. A photograph proving she was indeed at her Salisbury beach house in February 2017,
and therefore feloniously perjured before this Court on 5/4/18 when so denying; and

g. A video picturing Christina intoxicated on a ski lift and casually joking about the
danger thereof, revealing she later took rescue snowmobile escort down the mountain.

50. Maravelias is not “obsessed” with a delinquent law-breaker. His mind has not been

“preoccupied at all with [her]”, as written to Attorney Brown in the November 2017 letter. He has
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not disseminated any of the aforementioned exhibits. This shows his clemency and non-obsession.

If this Court will illegally injunct further against Maravelias’s free speech rights through shameful

diktats, he will make broader exercise of the free speech rights he still has.

51. Furthermore, since Maravelias has been sent the social media exhibits in question by
independent third parties who support him, the instant Motion to further abuse Maravelias is an
incredibly foolhardy act by the Petitioner. It is suspected that these third parties too will discontinue
their independent magnanimity in allowing Christina DePamphilis to grow in her delinquency

without public correction or documentation of the said.

CONCLUSION

“To extend the Stalking Order in this case would show plaintiffs all across the great State of New
Hampshire that you can come to court to get a restraining order against someone — to shut them up when

they say things you disagree with. ” — Paul Maravelias, 6/8/18 Hearing Closing Argument

52. Mr. Maravelias enjoys enormous validation of his trenchant determination from months
ago that the DePamphilis bad-faith “stalking order” abuse against him has been but a cowardly
attempt to restrict his speech, having nothing at all to do with a “fear for personal safety”.

53. The Petitioner’s shameful, panicked, and obscurantist Motion decisively confirms this.

54. The said is a but veiled attempt to criminalize Maravelias’s quotidian existence. It is a
nefarious scheme to conduce an innocent human life into doubtless imprisonment. It is a cowardly
contrivance birthed of the perverse validation this Court’s errors have tortiously bestowed upon
Maravelias’s abusers, and lacks any legal merit. It is beyond shameful that David and Christina
DePamphilis still machinate against the victim such dishonest abuse-stratagems which cowardly

masquerade under the misleading optics of protectivism.
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55. To echo familiar language from yesterday’s national holiday, in every stage of this Court’s
oppressions, Mr. Maravelias has petitioned for redress in the most humble terms. His repeated

petitions have been answered only by repeated injury. A Court whose character is thus marked by

every act which may define a tyrant, is unfit to be the judiciary of a frec people.

WHEREFORE, the foregoing compels the Respondent, Paul Maravelias, to pray this Court:

[ Grant this Motion;

IL. Grant Respondent’s 6/25/18 Motion for Reconsideration, which will terminate the
Stalking Order and dismiss Petitioner’s instant Motion as well as this Objection
thereto,

III.  Deny Petitioner’s Motion for Modification of Stalking Final Order of Protection
to Include Further Conditions; and

IV. Hold a Hearing, if necessary, on this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

PAUL J. MARAVELIAS,

in propria persona

July 5™, 2018
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EXHIBIT A

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

10™ CIRCUIT COURT
DISTRICT DIVISION - SALEM

ROCKINGHAM, SS. MAY, 2018
State of New Hampshire
V.

Paul Maravelias

Docket No.:
473-2018-CR-03516

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO DISMISS

Paul Maravelias is charged with Stalking. The Complaint alleges that Mr. Maravelias
engaged in conduct that both violated the Stalking order and was an act of communication when he
sent an email to Christina DePamphilis’ teachers objecting to her induction into a National Honor
Society. Mr. Maravelias moves to dismiss because, this conduct, even if proven, is not Stalking as
defined in RSA 633:3-a, and is a constitutionally protected activity. To the extent RSA 633:3-a
criminalizes the conduct in the Complaint, Mr. Maravelias moves to dismiss on the grounds that it is
unconstitutionally overbroad, unconstitutionally vague, or both.

In further support of these arguments, the defendant states the following:

1. Background

1. The defendant, Paul Maravelias, is charged with Stalking, contrary to RSA 633:3-

a, I(c). Specifically, the Complaint alleges that, on December 11, 2017:
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Maravelias
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


after being served an order pursuant to paragraph II1-a of the Stalking

Statute, [the defendant] did knowingly engage in an act of conduct that

violates the provisions of the order, an act of communication as defined in

RSA 644:4, 11, in that he threatened to destroy C.D.’s academic career to

her father’s attorney and then followed up with an email to four (4)

Windham High School faculty members attempting to get her in trouble in

school and [with the] National Honor Society.

Charge ID# 1448431C.

2. On February 7, 2016, the 10® Circuit Court — District Division — Salem (Stephen, J.)
issued a Stalking Final Order of Protection (“Final Order) for the plaintiff, Christina DePamphihis, and
against the defendant, Paul Maravelias. Maravelias has long maintained that the Final Order was based
upon Christina’s and her father’s, David Depamphilis’, false testimony — that they both testified that
Maravelias said he had waited until Christina was 16 to profess his love of her because it was the “age
of consent,” when in fact Maravelias denied making that statement and possessed a recording of the
conversation that made no reference to the term “age of consent.”

3. According to the discovery provided, on November 2, 2017, Maravelias sent a letter
to David DePamphilis’ lawyer stating that Maravelias would “go nuclear and utterly destroy
[Christina’s] academic and professional future by publishing these [images Christina had posted of
herself on the internet], should David dare challenge [Maravelias] legally.”

4. On December 10, 2017, Maravelias sent an email to a number of Windham High
School faculty entitled “Petition for Dismissal of NHS Student (unlawful conduct, ethics violations, and
substance abuse).” Maravelias is a Windham High School graduate and directed the email to faculty he
knows. In the email, Maravelias claimed that Christina, at the behest of her father, committed Perjury
(RSA 641:1) and False Reports to Law Enforcement (RSA 641:4) in order to obtain a stalking order

against him. Maravelias also claimed that Christina abused alcohol and drugs, and included a PDF with

some of Christina’s posts on the social media site Instagram. Additionally, Maravelias claimed that

page 2 of 9

SAMDPERIL & WELSH, PLLC
Atormeys at Law
100 High Streer, Exerar, Now Hampshire 03833 [ tek: (603) 775-7570 | www swohkw.com




Christina “bullied and harassed” Maravelias on social media. Maravelias invited the teachers to share
this information with colleagues or to contact him. But he specifically asked that they “not relay this in
any manner which could be construed an ‘indirect communication’ to Christina.

5. According to its website, the National Honor Society is “[m]ore than just an honor
roll, [and] serves to recognize those students who have demonstrated excellence in the areas of
scholarship, service, leadership, and character.” The site further defines a student of good character
as someone who is “cooperative; demonstrates high standards of honesty and reliability; shows
courtesy, concern, and respect for others; and generally maintains a clean disciplinary record.”

6. In his email, Maravelias argued that Christina DePamphilis should be dismissed
from the National Honor Society because she violated Article IV, Section 1(d) of the Constitution of
the Windham High School Chapter of the National Honor Society, which provides that:

Violation of the law or school regulations can result in dismissal of a

member. These violations include, but are not limited to: DWI, stealing,

destruction of property, cheating, truancy, bullying, cyberbullying, etc.

Additionally, being under the influence of drugs or alcohol, or being

associated with/in the presence of those who are illegally participating,
possessing, or selling drugs or alcohol may be grounds for dismissal.

II. Argument

7. Mr. Maravelias advances two main arguments in support of his motion to dismiss:
First, RSA 633:3-a, I(c) is unconstitutionally overbroad if an “act of communication” includes non-
threatening speech to a third party, with a legitimate and consitutional purpose. Second, RSA 633:3 -a,
I(c) is unconstitutionally vague if the conduct alleged is in fact criminal conduct because it does not
provide adequate notice that such conduct is prohibited under RSA 173-B and it invites arbitrary

enforcement.
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A. RSA 633:3-a, I(c) Violates the Overbreadth Doctrine

8. The pending Complaint should be dismissed because RSA 633:3-a, I{c) violates the
defendant’s rights as guaranteed by the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the Federal Constitution,
and Part 1, article 22 of the New Hampshire Constitution. The First Amendment, which applies to the
states through the Fourteenth Amendment, commands that “Congress shall make no law ... abridging

the freedom of speech.” U.S. Const. amend. I; see Lovell v. Griffin 303 U.S. 444, 450 (1938). The

New Hampshire Constitution similarly provides that “Free speech and liberty of the press are
essential to the security of freedom in a state: They ought, therefore, to be inviolably preserved.”
N.H. Const. Pt. 1, art. 22,

9. “As a general principle, the First Amendment bars the government from dictating
what we see or read or speak or hear.” Ashcroft v. Free Speech Coal., 535 U.S. 234, 245 (2002); see

also, State v. Zidel, 156 N.H. 684, 686 (2008). However, freedom of speech has its limits and does

not include certain categories of unlawful speech, such as words that incite others to violence or are
obscene. Ashcroft at 245; Zidel at 686. However, this case does not entail any allegation of inciting
or obscene speech.

10.  “A statute is void for overbreadth if it attempts to control conduct by means which

invade arcas of protected freedom.” State v. Briggs, 147 N.H. 431, 435 (2002) (quoting State v.

Pike, 128 N.H. 447, 450-51 (1986)). If a statute is found to be substantially overbroad, “the statute
must be invalidated unless the court can supply a limiting construction or partial invalidation that

narrows the scope of the statute to constitutionally acceptable applications.” State v. Brobst, 151

N.H. 420, 422 (2004). If, on the other hand, a statute is not substantially overbroad then “whatever

overbreadth may exist should be cured through case-by-case analysis of the fact situations to which
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its sanctions, assertedly, may not be applied.” Brobst at 422-23,

11. An email complaining that a person is unfit to meet the character requirements of
an organization is a form of speech, and sending an email petitioning for the person’s dismissal on
those grounds is a legitimate constitutional activity. As such, if the Stalking statute actually
prohibits this conduct, the statute itselfis substantially overbroad and must be invalidated.
Alternatively, if the statute itself is not substantially overbroad, the State’s application of the
Stalking statute to these facts requires the Court to dismiss the Complaint.

12. “Courts are suspicious of broad prophylactic rules in the area of free expression,
and therefore precision of regulation must be the touchstone in an area so closely touching our most

precious freedoms.” Montenegro v. New Hampshire Div. of Motor Vehicles, 166 N.H. 215, 220

(2014). When a defendant is charged with Stalking, the State must prove that the defendant’s conduct
does not include a “constitutionally protected activity,” or “conduct that was necessary to accomplish
a legitimate purpose independent of making contact with the targeted person.” RSA 633 :3-a, l(a).
The term “constitutionally protected activities” is not defined within the statute, but is well understood
to include lawful speech, expression, and other conduct protected by the First Amendment.

13. Although the void for vagueness doctrine is addressed more fully below, “the
problems of vagueness and overbreadth in statutes, although raising separate problems, often arise
together” and address the same evils, i.e., application of the statute's sanctions to protected activity
and deterrence of others from engaging in similar conduct. Id. (citations omiited). Thus, if the
Stalking statute bans legitimate letters of complaint, it is overbroad. As our Supreme Court held in

State v. Brobst, 151 N.H. 420 (2004) when it struck down a section of the harassment statute as

unconstitutionally overbroad, a “prohibition of a// telephone calls placed with the intent to alarm

encompasses too large an area of protected speech.” Id. at 423 (emphasis added). Similarly here, if
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the statutory interpretation of “contact” or “act of communication” eliminates even non-threatening,
non-violent, and legitimate speech, it encompasses all constitutionally protected activity, not merely
contact or communications to the protected person.

14, Here, if the email is either a “threat” as used in the Final Order, or an “act of
communication” to the protected person under RSA 633:3-a, I(a)(7), the Stalking statute not only
punishes a normally protected activity, but it provides too little warning about what conduct is not
prohibited. A narrowed statutory application, or a finding that the statute is facially invalid are the
only constitutional remedies.

15. Even assuming that section I(c) is not overbroad on its face, and that it attempts to
regulate “constitutionally protected activities,” not bar them, it is still overbroad. When a statute
seeks to regulate speech “precision of regulation” is demanded. See NAACP v. Claiborne Hardware
Co., 458 U.S. 886, 916 (1982). RSA 633:3-a, I(c) fails to distinguish between lawful and
constitutional conduct, such as writing an email or letter, and recognized First Amendment

exceptions, such as conduct that is obscene or actually threatens violence. See Asheroft, 535 U.S. at

246; Zidel at 686. In Maravelias’ case, there is no First Amendment exception that applies or
operates to regulate his facially legitimate allegation that Ms. DePamphilis’ character does not merit
inclusion in the National Honor Society. Again, whether the statute is narrowed or found invalid,

the Complaint should be dismissed.

B. RSA 633:3-a. I(c) Should Be Held Void for Vagueness

16. A statute can be impermissibly vague for either of two independent reasons. First,
if'it fails to provide people of ordinary intelligence a reasonable opportunity to understand what

conduct it prohibits. Second, if it authorizes or even encourages arbitrary and discriminatory
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enforcement.” State v. Porelle, 149 N.H. 420, 423 (2003); see also, United States v. Williams, 553

U.S. 285, 304((2008); U.S. Const. amends. V & XIV; N.H. Const. Pt. 1, art. 15. “An overly vague
statute “violates the first essential of due process of law,” because citizens ‘must necessarily guess at
its meaning and differ as to its application’.” Connally v. Gen, Constr. Co., 269 U.S. 385, 391
(1926).

17.  RSA 633:3-a, I(c) requirgs that, after being served with an order “that prohibits
contact with a specific individual” the defendant “purposely, knowingly, or recklessly engages in a
single act of conduct that both violates the provisions of the order and is listed in paragraph II(a).”
RSA 633:3-a, I(c). Although the New Hampshire Supreme Court has examined whether other

sections of RSA 633:3-a are void for vagueness, sec Miller v. Blackden, 154 N.H. 448 {2006)

(stalking statute is not vague and does not violate Part 1, article 15) and Porelle, supra (same), it has

never addressed section I(c).

18.  The Ianguage in the Complaint is that the defendant engaged in a single act of
conduct when “he threatened to destroy C.D.’s academic career to her father’s attorney and then
followed up with an email to four (4) Windham High School faculty members attempting to get her
in trouble in school and [with the] National Honor Society.”

19. RSA 644:4, 1 defines “communicates” as

impart[ing] a message by any method of transmission, including but not
limited to telephoning or personally delivering or sending or having
delivered any information or material by written or printed note or letter,

package, mail, courier service or electronic transmission, including
electronic transmissions generated or communicated via a computer.

RSA 644:4, 11.
20. Sending an email to a third person, not the protected person, with no intention

that the email or its message be forwarded to the protected person, 1s not explicitly prohibited by the
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protective order, or included within the definition of “communication” in RSA 644:4, II. In fact here,
the message was meant for the actual recipients of the email — the Windham High School faculty
involved in the National Honor Society — and Maravelias specifically asked that it not be transmitted to
Ms. DePamphilis. To the extent that Maravelias’ email violated the protective order or the
provisions of RSA 173-B, or both, the statute on its face, and as applied, should be held void for

vagueness. Accordingly, the Complaint should be dismissed.

L. Conclusion

21. For all the reasons set forth above, this court should dismiss the stalking complaint

currently pending against Mr. Maravelias.
Dated this 2 day of May, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

/ Lo "
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ichard E. Samdperil
NHBAR ID # 11036
Samdperil & Welsh, PLLC
100 High Street
Exeter, New Hampshire 03833
(603) 775-7570

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, Richard E, Samdperil, do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing Notice has been

forwarded this f{’ ﬂday of May, 2018 to Heather Iworsky, Esquire, Prosecutor for the Windham Police
Department.
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